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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO.

AMERICAN FEDERATION
OF GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES
(“AFGE”) LOCAL 501 and
COUNCIL OF PRISON LOCALS, CLASS ACTION
CPL 33,
Plaintiffs,

VS.

JOSEPH R. BIDEN, in his official
capacity, as President of the United
States, MICHAEL CARVAJAL, in his
official capacity, as the Director of
the Federal Bureau of Prisons, EUGENE
CARLTON, in his official capacity as the
Warden of the Miami, Federal Detention
Center, MERRICK GARLAND, in his
official capacity. as Attorney General of the
United States, U.S. Department of Justice,
Federal Bureau of Prisons, KIRAN AHUJA,
in her official capacity, as Director of the
Office of Personnel Management, and as
Co-chair of the Safer Federal Workforce
Task Force, and Jeffrey Zients, in his official capacity,
as Co-chair of the Safer Federal Workforce Task
Force and COVID-19 Response Coordinator,
Defendants.
/
PLAINTIFFS’ VERIFIED COMPLAINT FOR A TEMPORARY RESTRAINING
ORDER, PRELIMINARY AND PERMANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF, AND
’ DECLARATORY RELIEF

COMES NOW, the above-named Plaintiffs, American Federation of Government
Employees Local 501, and Council of Prison Locals CPL 33, by and through their undersigned

counsel, and together, as representatives of a putative class, they bﬁng this Complaint, against the
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above-named Defendants, Joseph R. Biden, in his official capacity, as President of the United
States, Eugéne Carlton, in his official capacity as the Warden of the Miami Federal Detention
Center, Michael Carvajal, in his official capacity as Director, of the Federal Bureau of Prisons,
Merrick Garland, in his official capacity as Attorney General of the United States, U.S. Department
of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons; Kiren Ahuja, in her official capacity, as Director of the
Office of Personnel Management, and as Co-chair of the Safer Federal Workforce Taskforce and
Jeffrey Zients, in his official capacity as Co-chair of the Safer Federal Workforce Taskforce, and
COVID-19 Response Coordinator; and in support hereof, the Plaintiffs allege the following, upon
information and belief:

I.
INTRODUCTION

1. This case seeks to protect and vindicate statutory, and fundamental constitutional rights;
and therefore, the Plaintiffs, herein, as representatives of a putative class of federal
employees, hereby bring a civil rights action, under the Fourteenth Amendment to the
United States Constitution, as enforced through 42 U.S.C. Section 1983; and further for
applicable violations of the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (e); and for other
constitutional and statutory violations, challenging the Defendants’ acts, personnel
policies, customs and workplace procedures, which deprived Plaintiffs of their due process
rights, under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, as well as their
Fourteenth Amendment liberty right to privacy, self-autonomy and personal identity,

including the right to reject mandated medical procedures and treatment.
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2. Furthermore, the Acts of the Defendants, herein, failed to follow the notice and comment
provisions of the Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. Section 553; such conduct is a
clear abject failure, and the Defendants failed to apply or to invoke the good cause
excep{ion, under 5 U.S.C. Section 553 (b)(3)(B), of the Administrative Procedure Act, and
in addition, the broad sweep of federal employee mandate, is clearly arbitrary and
capricious, violating the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment, to the
Unitéd States Constitution, since the corrections officers/bargaining unit employees, and
members of the putative class, are subject to the vaccine mandate, however, prison inmates
are not, thereby failing to comply with even a deferential rational basis test.

3. The Defendants have unjustly discriminated against Plaintiffs’ right to privacy, as set forth
under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, as enforced through
42 U.S.C. Section 1983; as well as the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (e), by
mande}ting the COVID-19 vaccine, as a condition of continued employment, with the
Defendant Agency, U.S. Department of Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons.

4. Specifically, the Defendants’ vaccine mandate seeks to override Plaintiffs’ liberty right to
privacy, pursuant to the Fourteenth Amendment-to the United States Constitution, and as
enforced ihrough 42 U.S.C. Section 1983; and the application of the vaccine mandate seeks
to unlawfully override the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (e).

5. The vaccine mandate fails to comply the notice and comment provisions of the

Administrative Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C. Section 553.
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6. The vaccine mandate does not pass constitutional muster, under the Equal Protection
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

7. As set forth in this Complaint, the policies, practices, customs and procedures of the
Defendants, were the cause of, and the moving force behind, the statutory, and
constitutional violations in this case.

8. Therefore, based upon the foregoing, Plaintiffs and members of the putative class, seek the
following relief:

a. Injunctive relief enjoining the unconstitutional application of the Defendants’ policies,
practices, customs and procedures, as set forth in this Complaint, through the
imposition of a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunction and permanent
injunction;

b. A declaration that the Defendants, violated the Plaintiffs’ clearly established statutory,
and constitutional rights;

¢. A declaration that the training, supervision, policies, practices, customs and procedures
of the Defendants, as set forth in this Complaint, violate the United States Constitution
and the Privacy Act of 1974;

d. A finding that the Defendants’ actions violated the United States Constitution and the
Privacy Act of 1974;

€. A declaration that the conduct of the Defendants, herein, violated the Administrative

Procedure Act, 5 U.S.C.551, et seq.;
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f. A finding that the Defendants’ actions violated the Administrative Procedure Act, 5
U.S.C.551, et seq.;

g. An award of damages; and

h.  An award of Plaintiffs’ reasonable costs of this litigation, including attorney’s fees and
costs, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. Section 1988 and other applicable law.

II.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE

9. This'action arises under the Constitution and laws of the United States; jurisdiction is
conferred upon the district court, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1331 and 1343; as well as
under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983; and the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (e); and
further, pursuant to other federal laws and regulations, to redress violations of federal law.

10. This action is further brought, pursuant to the Administrative Procedures Act, 5 U.S.C.
Section 553, ef seq., as well as, pursuant to the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth
Amenfiment to the United States Constitution, and as enforced through 42 U.S.C. Section
1983, since bargaining unit members, Plaintiffs and members of the putative class, are
being treated in a disparate manner, as compared to federally sentenced inmates and pre-
trial inmates.

11. The district court has jurisdiction pursuant to Article III of the United States Constitution,
28 U.S.C. Section 1331 and 28 U.S.C. Section 1343(a); declaratory relief is authorized
pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 2201 and 2202.

12. Plaintiffs’ claims for declaratory and injunctive relief, are authorized by 28 U.S.C. Section

2201 and 2202, by Rules 57 and 63 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, and by the
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general legal and equitable powers of this Court; Plaintiffs’ claims for damages are
authorized under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section
552(‘;:1), et seq., the Administrative Procedures Act, 5 U.S.C. Section 553, et seq., and by
the general legal and equitable powers of this Court.

13. Venue is proper in this District, under 28 U.S.C. Section 1391(b), because a substantial
part of the events and or omissions giving rise to Plaintiffs’ claims, occurred in this District.

II1.
PARTIES

14. Plaintiff, American Federation of Government Employees (“AFGE”) Local 501, is a duly
authorized labor organization, operating as the exclusive bargaining representative, for
employees of the Defendant, the United States Department of Justice, Bureau Prisons, and
said employees are members of the bargaining unit, employed by the Defendant, in Miami,
Miami-Dade County, Florida; at federal conectic;ns institutions; and further, AFGE Local
501 (“LOCAL 501), is a constituent local union, of the Council of Prison Locals, CPL 33.

15. Plaintiff, Council of Prison Locals, CPL 33 (“COUNCIL”), is the district office, for local
labor organizations, representing bargaining unit employees, employed by the Defendant,
the United States Department of Justice, Bureau Prisons, in federal corrections institutions,
in Miami, Miami-Dade County, Florida, including the constituent local union, AFGE Local
501; and through its district office capacity, overseeing the operations of local unions, the
COUI\.ICIL represents 33,000 bargaining unit members throughout the United States, and

or its territories.
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16. Bargaining unit members, are constituents of the Plaintiffs, herein; these bargaining unit
members; they are known and referred to Federal Bargaining Unit Members, in federal
detention and corrections institutions, to include all COUNCIL members stationed in other
non-corrections facilities, such as training facilities residential reentry facilities, the Central
Office and other related facilities; and as members of the putative class, will be and are
being substantively affected, by the federal government’s vaccine mandate, which was
originally announced through the issuance of Executive Order, 14043, by President Biden,
on September 9, 2021.

17. Defendant, Joseph R. Biden, is the President of the United States and the President is being
sued in his official capacity.

18. Defendant, Michael Carvajal, is the Director of the Federal Bureau of Prisons and the
Director is being sued in his official capacity.

19. Defendant, the Federal Bureau of Prisons, is a federal agency.

20. Defendant, Eugene Carlton, is the Warden of the Miami Federal Detention Center and he
is bein'g sued in his official capacity.

21. Defendant, Merrick Garland, as Attorney General of United States, U.S. Department of
Justice, Federal Bureau of Prisons (“AGENCY™), is the legally designated Agency head;
he is.being sued in his official capacity; and as such, in this role, he is responsible for the
personnel policies and practices, as pronounced and implemented, with respect to
AGENCY employees, including the Plaintiffs, herein.

22. Defendant, the Department of J ustice, Federal Bureau of Prisons, is a federal agency.



Case 1:21-cv-23828-JAL Document 1 Entered on FLSD Docket 10/30/2021 Page 8 of 24

23. Defendant Kiran Ahuja, is being sued in her official capacity, as the Director of the Office
of Personnel Management.

24, Defepdant, the Office of Personnel Management (“OPM”), is an independent federal
agency.

25. Defendant, Jeffrey Zients, is being sued in his official capacity as the Co-chair of the Safer
Federal Workforce Taskforce; and he also serves as the White House COVID-19 Response
Coordinator.

26. Defendant, the AGENCY, is an agency of the federal government, within the meaning of
5 U.S.C. Section 552 (a)(1), and it is or will be in possession of records pertaining to the
Plaintiffs, herein, and members of the putative class, verifying and or confirming their
vaccination status.

27. Defendant, the Federal Bureau of Prisons, is an agency of the Federal government, within
the meaning of 5 U.S.C. Section 552 (a)(1), and it is, or will be in possession of medical
records, pertaining to the Plaintiffs herein, and members of the putative class, confirming
and or verifying their vaccination status.

IV.
STATEMENT OF FACTS

28. On September 9, 2021, the President signed Executive Order No. 14043 (“EO”), 86 Fed.
Reg. 50989, “Requiring Coronavirus Disease 2019 Vaccination for federal employees.”

29. The EO stated a requirement that “each agency shall implement . . . a program to require
COVID-19 vaccinations, for all of its federal employees.” (Also known, as the “Employee

Mandate.”).
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30. The EO further required the Whitehouse Safer Workforce Task Force to issue guidance for
agencies by September 16, 2021, but there was no specific directive or explicit provision,
for any religious or medical exemption to the vaccine requirement.

31. On September 16, 2021, Whitehouse Safer Workforce Task Force merely updated the
“Frequently Asked Questions” (“FAQ™! on its website, apparently, to fulfill the EO
guidance requirement.?

32. On information and belief, the Whitehouse Safer Workforce Task Force has never
published its guidance in the Federal Register; and moreover, no federal agency has
foll&wedany notice and comment procedures before issuing its guidance.

33. On September 16, 2021, pursuant to an Executive Order, all federal employees were
required to comply with the Biden Administration’s COVID 19 vaccination mandate, and
this Executive Order, also applied to Agency employees.

34. On October 1, 2021, the Whitehouse Safer Workforce Task Force stated that November
22,2021, is the deadline for federal employees to be fully vaccinated; and federal agencies
are aufhorized to begin the disciplinary process for employees who refuse to comply, with
the vaccination mandate on November 9, 2021, since a period of two weeks, are required,
from the second Moderna or Pfizer shot, and the single dose Johnson & Johnson vaccine,

for the vaccine to provide full protection.

* The FAQ’s are attached hereto, as EXHIBIT A.

? The FAQ’s contends that exceptions to the Employee Mandate are to be made in “limited
circumstances where the law requires an exception.”
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35. The enforcement or disciplinary process begins with a five-day counseling period, in which
agencies, including the Defendant herein, must provide the non-compliant employee with
information on the benefits of the vaccine, and how to obtain the vaccine.

36. According to the Whitehouse Safer Workforce: Task Force, continued non-compliance
during tHe suspension can be followed by a removal proposal, but purported unique
operational needs of the agencies, and the circumstances affecting a particular employee
may warrant departure from this guidance, if necessary.

37.The Office of Personnel Management (“OPM™) provided further guidance on the
implementation of the vaccine mandate, stating that if an employee receives the first dose
of the Moderna or Pfizer vaccine, after an agency, including the Defendant has begun the
disciplinary process, the agency should put the process on hold, to give that employee the
opportunity to prove he or she has received the second dose.

38. Furthermore, OPM has opined, that if an employee receives a second dosage during a
suspénsion, the remainder of the suspension sh;)uld be put on hold, until the employee
provides documentation of the second dose, at which point the suspension will end.

39. OPM also opined that if an employee provides an agency with appropriate documentation,
after November 8, 2021, that the employee has received the first dose of the two shot
vaccine, an agency may hold any disciplinary action in abeyance, pending receipt of the
appropriate documentation, that the employee has received the second dose within the
designated three or four week interval, depending on the vaccine received by the employee,

even if this means that the employee will not be fully vaccinated by November 22, 2021;
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and under these circumstances, the employee should be provided with a deadline for
receiving the final does f the vaccine and providing appropriate documentation.

40. OPM guidance further held that, if a federal employee does not comply with the
requirement to become fully vaccinated, under the Executive Order, and has not been
provided with an exemption, the agency, including the Defendant herein, may pursue
disciplinary action, up to and including, removal from the federal service.

41. The Whitehouse Safer Workforce Task Force has further stated that new hires in the
federal workforce, must be required to prove that they are fully vaccinated, before they
report, for their first day on the job.

42. OPM has provided additional guidance, stating that when an individual fails to meet a
requirement in the job announcement, the agency may take a personnel action, up to any
including rescinding the job offer for an applicant or termination from the federal service
of a new employee, or the removal of an employee who has accrued adverse action rights.

43. Through its course of conduct and its newly enacted personnel practices and policies, the
Defendant has violated the express purpose and goal of the Privacy Act, which is to provide
protection, against possible abuses of governmental power, to affect an individual’s private
and confidential information.

44. As a direct result of exercising their constitutional and statutory rights, Plaintiffs and
members of the putative class, have been and or will be subjected to disciplinary sanctions.

45. The AGENCY has failed to abide by the express purpose of the Privacy Act, as declared

by Congress, whereby all agencies of the Executive Branch and their employees, to observe
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46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

certain constitutional rules in computerization, collection, management, use and disclosure
of personal employee information.
Based upon both the AGENCY’s violations of both statutory and fundamental
constitutional principles, the Plaintiffs are entitled to both monetary and injunctive relief,
on an expedited basis, as well as reasonable attofney’s fees and costs.
The AGENCY and the other Defendants, herein, are required to take an oath of office, to
support and defend the Constitution of the United States, pursuant to 5 U.S.C. Section
3331.
By failing to properly maintain their oath of office, pursuant to the United States
Constitution, the AGENCY and the other Defendants, have subjected the Plaintiffs and
the members of the putative class, as sworn law enforcement officers, to the deprivation of
their f{mdamental constitutional rights, under color of law, in direct violation of 18 U.S.C.
Section 242.
COUNTI
. (RIGHT TO PRIVACY, PERSONAL AUTONOMY AND PERSONAL
IDENTITY, UNDER THE FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT; 42 U.S.C. SECTION
1983)
Plaintiffs restate and re-allege the allegations contained within Paragraphs 1—48 of the
Verified Complaint, as if fully set forth herein.
By reason of the aforementioned acts, policies, practices, customs and procedures: created,
adopted and enforced, under the color of state law, the Defendants have deprived Plaintiffs

of their fundamental constitutional right to privacy, personal autonomy, and personal

identity, all in violation of the Fourteenth Amendment, as applied to the Plaintiffs, herein,
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unde‘r the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. Section
1983.

51. The Defendants herein, acting as managers of the applicable administrative process and as
an employer, have clearly deprived Plaintiffs of their fundamental right to bodily integrity,
to make their own informed medical decisions, with the assistance of their personal
physicians.

52. By fa\./oring and enforcing policies that approve of and force medical treatment over the
Plaintiffs, acting as federal law enforcement officers; infringing on applicable rights to
privacy, personal identity and personal autonomy, the Defendants have clearly violated
Plaintiffs’ fundamental rights under the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States
Constitution.

53. The Defendants’ conduct deprives Plaintiffs of their personal choices, central to individual
dignity and autonomy, including intimate choices, defining personal identity and beliefs,
and by stigmatizing and labeling their privacy rights and interests, as unworthy of
protection by the Defendants, acting as managers of the applicable administrative process,
and as the applicable federal employer.

54. The Defendants policies, practices, customs, and procedures; clearly punish and impose
disciplinary action on the Plaintiffs, for the alleged violations of the Defendant’s new
policies, simply for exercising their privacy rights and their further right to personal

autonomy, to make their own medical decisions.
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53,

56.

The Defendants’ conduct herein has injured the Plaintiffs, by violating their constitutional
rights, through the threat of discipline and sanction, by the Defendants, herein, for the
failuré to comply with its new personnel policies, which implicate the right to privacy and
personal autonomy.

As a direct and proximate result of the Defendants’ violation of the Fourteenth
Amendment, Plaintiffs have suffered, are sufferiﬁg, and will continue to suffer irreparable
harm, including the loss of their fundamental constitutional rights, entitling them to
declaratory and injunctive relief: additionally, Plaintiffs are entitled to damages for the loss
of their constitutional rights.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, AFGE LOCAL 501, and COUNCIL OF PRISON LOCALS,
CPL 33, respectfully request that this Court enter Judgment against the Attorney General,
MERRICK GARLAND, as Attorney General of the United States, Department of Justice,
Burea{l of Prisons, as well as the other named Defendants, herein; in favor of the Plaintiffs
and members of the putative class, and order the following relief:

A) Award the Plaintiffs their applicable damages for the constitutional violation;

B) .Award the Plaintiffs their costs and a reasonable attorney’s fee;

C) Grant declaratory relief stating that the Defendant violated the Fourteenth
Amendment to the United States Constitution, as enforced by 42 U.S. C. Section
1983;

D) Enjoin the Defendant from continuing its course of conduct, which violate the United

States Constitution, under the Fourteenth Amendment;
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E) Grant the Plaintiffs’ application for a temporary restraining order, preliminary and
permanent injunctive relief, as well as declaratory relief in their favor and against the
Defendant; and

F) Grant to the Plaintiffs, herein, any and all, appropriate relief, which the Court deems
to be just and proper.

COUNT I1
(VIOLATION OF THE PRIVACY ACT, 5 U.S.C. SECTION 552a (e))

57. Plaintiffs restate and re-allege the allegations contained within Paragraphs 1—48 of the
Verified Complaint, as if fully set forth herein.
58. Under the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (2), Congress expressed specific
Findings and a Statement of Purpose, indicating in pertinent part:
The increasing use of computers and sophisticated information technology, while
essential to the efficient operation of government, has greatly magnified the harm
to individual privacy that can occur from any collection, maintenance, use, or
dissemination of personal information.
59. In addition, under Congress’ policy statement, on the Privacy Act, found at Section (a)(4),

on the Congressional Statement of Purpose,

. . . the right to privacy is a personal and fundamental right protected by the Constitution
of the United States, and at Section (¢). Congress has further stated,

. in order to protect the privacy of individuals, identified by federal agencies, it is
necessary and proper, for Congress to regulate the collection, maintenance, use and
dissemination of information by such agencies.

60. The Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a (e), states in pertinent part as follows:

(e) Agency Requirements—FEach agency that mandates a system of records shall—
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(1) Maintain in its records only such information about an individual as is relevant
and necessary to accomplish a purpose of the agency, required by statute or by
Executive Order of the President;

(2) Collect information to the greatest extent practicable directly from the subject
individual when the information may result in adverse determinations abut an
individual’s rights, benefits and privileges under Federal programs;

(3) Inform each individual whom it asks to supply information, on the form which
it uses to collect the information or on a separate form that can be retained by
the individual—

(A)the authority (whether granted by statute, or by executive order of the
President) which authorizes the solicitation of the information and
whether the disclosure of such information is mandatory or voluntary;

(B) the principal purpose or purposes for which the information is intended
to be used;

(C) the routine uses which may be made of the information, as published
pursuant to paragraph (4)(D) of this subsection; and

(D) the effects on him, if any, of not providing all r any part of the requested
information.

61. The Pl'rivacy Act is designed to safeguard the right of personal privacy, against invasion by
government agencies, which both collect and use personal data, see, 5 U.S.C. Section 552a.

62. The goal of the Privacy Act is to provide effective protection, against possible abuses of
gove;’nmental power to affect an individual’s privacy rights, and his or her confidential
information.

63. The Act requires all agencies of the Executive Branch and its employees, to observe certain
constitutional rules in computerization, collection, management, use and disclosure of

personal employee information.
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64. By requiring federal employees to release personal health and medical information, the
Defendant has violated fundamental privacy rights under the Act, and moreover, the
Defendant has failed to articulate sufficient procedural safeguards, designed to protect the
confidentiality of private medical information.

65. On information and belief, the pertinent Executive Order and its so-called, enabling
“FAQ’s” wholly fail to establish a system of medical records administration, to ensure the
safety and integrity of the medical records of th.e Plaintiffs and members of the putative
class, including their personal vaccination status.

66. Pursuant to the Privacy Act, the AGENCY, and the Federal Bureau of Prisons, in
cooperation with the other Defendants, must maintain a system of records, to protect the
confidentiality of employee records, and to comply with the requirements of the Act, see,
5 U.S.C. Section 552a (f).

67. The Defendants, its employees and officers, knew or should have known, that their actions
were \:vholly improper, unlawful, and or constituted a violation of the Privacy Act.

68. The Defendants, its employees and officers, acted intentionally, or willfully in violation
of the Plaintiffs’ privacy rights.

69. As a result of the Defendants’ violations of the Privacy Act, the Plaintiffs have suffered
adverse and harmful effects, including, but not limited to, mental distress, emotional

trauma, embarrassment, humiliation, and by the Defendant’s conduct, Plaintiffs have lost

present or future financial opportunities.
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70. The Plaintiffs have retained undersigned counsel to prosecute this case on their behalf, they
have incurred attorney’s fees and costs; and hence they are entitled to an award of
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, AFGE LOCAL 501, and COUNCIL OF PRISON LOCALS,

CPL 3.3, respectfully request that this Court enter judgment against the Attorney General,

MERRICK GARLAND, as Attorney General of the United States, Department of Justice,

Bureau of Prisons, as well as the other named De_fendants, herein; in favor of the Plaintiffs

and r.nembers of the putative class, and order the following relief:

(A) Declare that the Defendant violated the Privacy Act, and further order preliminary
injunctive relief, as well as permanent injunctive relief;

(B) Award the Plaintiffs actual damages under 5 U.S.C. Section 552a(g)(4)(A), the exact
amount, which is to be determined at trial, but is not less than $1,000 per statutory
violation;

(C) Award to the Plaintiffs their reasonable attorney’s fees and costs, pursuant to 5 U.S.C.
Section 552a(g)(3)(B) and or (4)(B), 552 (a)(4)(E) and or 28 U.S.C. Section 2412 (d);

(D) Expedite this action in every possible manner pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Section 1657 (a);
and

(E) Grant such other relief as the Court may deem to be just and proper.

18
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COUNT I1I
(VIOLATION OF THE ADMINISTRATRIVE PROCEDURE ACT, 5 U.S.C.
SECTION 553)

71. Plaintiffs restate and re-allege the allegations contained within Paragraphs 1—48 of the
Verified Complaint, as if fully set forth herein.

72. The Administrative Procedure Act requires notice of, and comment on, agency rules that
“affect individual rights and obligations.”

73. Under the Administrative Procedure Act, a court must hold “unlawful and set aside agency
action that is not in accordance with law, or in excess of statutory . . . authority, or
limitations, or short of statutory right,” see, 5 U.S.C. Section 706(2)(A)(C).

74. Under the Administrative Procedure Act, a court must hold unlawful and set aside agency
action,” that is “arbitrary [or] capricious,” see, 5 U.S.C. section 706 2)(A).

75. The federal employee vaccine mandate, issued pursuant to Executive Order 14043,
certainly substantially “affect individual rights ar;d obligations,” as set forth and described
above.

76. The Defendants failed to comply with the Notice and Comment provisions of the
Administrative Procedure Act, see, 5 U.S.C. Section 706(2)(D).

77. The Defendants have acted arbitrarily and capriciously, in violation of the Administrative
Procedure Act, see, 5 U.S.C. Section 706(2)(A); and the Agency’s action here must be

invalidated for the abject failure to abide by the statutory requirements of the

Administrative Procedure Act.
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78.

79.

80.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, AFGE LOCAL 501, and COUNCIL OF PRISON LOCALS,
CPL 33, respectfully request that this Court enter Jjudgment against the Attorney General,
MERRICK GARLAND, as Attorney General of the United States, Department of Justice,
Bureau of Prisons, as well as the other named Defendants, herein; in favor of the Plaintiffs
and members of the putative class, and order the following relief:
(A) D'eclare that the Defendant violated the Administrative Procedure Act, and further
order preliminary injunctive relief, as well as permanent injunctive relief;
(B) The entry of a finding by the Court inval?dating the vaccine mandate for federal
émp}oyees, pursuant to Executive Order 14043: and
(C) Grant such other relief as the Court may deem to be just and proper.
COUNT IV
(VIOLATION OF THE EQUAL PROTECTION CLAUSE, UNDER THE
FOURTEENTH AMENDMENT; AND ENFORCED THROUGH 42 U.S.C.
SECTION 1983)
Plaintiffs restate and re-allege the allegations contained within Paragraphs 1—48 of the
Verified Complaint, as if fully set forth herein.
By reason of the aforementioned acts, policies, practices, customs and procedures; created,
adopted and enforced under the color of state law, the Defendants have deprived Plaintiffs
of their fundamental constitutional right to Equal Protection, in violation of the Fourteenth
Améndment, as applied to the Plaintiffs, herein,-under the Fourteenth Amendment to the
United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. Section 1983.
Within the workplace, Plaintiffs and members of the putative class, are being treated in an

unlawful disparate manner, in that the federal employee vaccine mandate, imposed through
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Executive Order 14043, although applicable to them, does not apply to federally sentenced
and pre-trial inmates, and the disparate unlawful treatment, has no rational basis, in
violation of the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

81. The .Defendants’ policies, practices, customs, procedures; clearly punish and impose
disciplinéry action on the Plaintiffs, for the alleged violations of the Defendants’ new
personnel policies, simply because of their status as federal employees, in the workplace.

82. The Defendants’ conduct herein has injured the Plaintiffs by violating their constitutional
rights, through the threat of discipline and sanction, by the Defendants, herein, for the
failure to comply with its new personnel policies, which implicate the Equal Protection
Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment.

83. As adirect and proximate result of the Defendants’ violation of the Equal Protection Clause

of the Fourteenth Amendment, Plaintiffs have suffered, are suffering, and will continue to
suffer irreparable harm, including the loss of their fundamental constitutional rights,
entitling them to declaratory and injunctive reli;af; additionally, Plaintiffs are entitled to
damages for the loss of their constitutional rights.
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs, AFGE LOCAL 501, and COUNCIL OF PRISON LOCALS,
CPL 33, respectfully request that this Court enter Judgment against the Attorney General,
MERRICK GARLAND, as Attorney General of the United States, Department of Justice,
Bureau of Prisons, as well as the other named Defendants, herein; in favor of the Plaintiffs
and members of the putative class, and order the following relief:

A) Award the Plaintiffs their applicable damages for the constitutional violation;
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B) Award the Plaintiffs their costs and a reasonable attorney’s fee;

C) Grant declaratory relief stating that the Defendant violated the Fourteenth
Amendment to the United States Constitution, as enforced by 42 U.S. C. Section

* 1983;

D) Enjoin the Defendant from continuing its course of conduct, which violate the
United States Constitution, under the Fourteenth Amendment;

E) Grant the Plaintiffs’ application for a témporary restraining order, preliminary
and permanent injunctive relief, as well as declaratory relief in their favor and
against the Defendant; and

F) Grant to the Plaintiffs, herein, any and all, appropriate relief, which the Court

deems to be just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

Mark J. Berkowitz, P.A.
Attorney for Plaintiffs

AFGE Local 501

Council of Prison Locals CPL 33
One Ten Tower

110 S.E. 6" Street

Suite 1700

Ft. Lauderdale, Florida 33301
(954) 527-0570 Telephone

(954) 281-5881 Telecopier
E-mail: labor@markjberkowitz.com
Fla. Bar No. 369391

/s/ Mark J. Berkowitz
Mark J. Berkowitz

Dated on this 29" day of October, 2021.
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VE ATION
We hereby state and affirm that we have read the foregoing Verified Complaint for
a Temporary Resfm'ining Order, and a Preliminary and Permanent Injunction; and that the

eontents gy stated herein, are true and correct, to the best of our knowledge, information,
and belief,

Dated: October L2021

m&‘ g

Printed Nae

STATE OF ﬁrzwmg ;
COUNTY oF AL

The feregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this :gﬂmday of October,

......... rsonally known m.n@or produced the following as

G = S OURRN

identification

e B e e

NOTARY PUBLIC

My Commission Expires on Saal

April 21 2024 J

- .
AndrewE . Kiina, mﬁ
‘Lypoming County

My commission SXpires Aprij 27, 2024
Commission Rumber 1267950

PuBiC.
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PRESID 5NT ,AFGE LOCAL 501

( ’;gﬁature)/“" '
EV\) i, E( Sp@’ o

Pnnted Name

STATE OF FLORIDA ]

COUNTY OF BROWARD ]

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on this QY day of October,

2021, and the Affiant is personally known to me, or produced the following as

identification R O’ ) \/‘Q/iY L C

1/\ / Q.\Agu Sean Wienker-Cullum
%’ 3 % > NOTARY PUBLIC
/ -« STATE OF FLORIDA
: “ /¥ Comm# GG183089

NOTARY PUBLIC 'm B Expires 2/6/2022

My Commission Expires on ]\ o )a;c}\ 3\




